
           
The City of Muskogee encourages participation from all its citizens in public meetings. If participation is not possible due to a disability,
notify the City Clerk, in writing, at least forty-eight hours prior to the scheduled meeting and necessary accommodations will be made (ADA
28 CFR/36).

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments on agenda items and public hearings to five (5) minutes and general comments for
non-agenda items to three (3) minutes.  Any person desiring to address the Council during such period is required to sign in with the City Clerk
prior to the Council meeting between 6:30 p.m. and 6:45 p.m. on the third floor of City Hall or anytime between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. in the
Office of the City Clerk. They shall provide their name, address and specify the agenda item they wish to address. Remarks shall be directed to
the matter being considered and the speaker is allowed to speak only one time. If written materials are to be submitted twelve (12) copies
should be made available, and may not be returned.

 

AGENDA
MUSKOGEE CITY COUNCIL

November 13, 2017
 
 

REGULAR SESSION -7:00 P.M., 3RD FLOOR, COUNCIL CHAMBERS MUNICIPAL BUILDING,
229 W. OKMULGEE, MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA

INVOCATION - MAYOR BOB COBURN

FLAG SALUTE - MAYOR BOB COBURN

ROLL CALL - MAYOR BOB COBURN

           

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: SPECIAL CALL CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OCTOBER 17,
2017 AND CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION OCTOBER 23, 2017.
 

CONSENT AGENDA
 

The following items are considered to be routine by the City Council and will not be read aloud.
The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one motion and should discussion be desired on an
item, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to action and considered
separately prior to the Regular Agenda.
 
 

1. Approval of claims for all city departments October 12, 2017 through October 31, 2017. 
 

2. Approval of Resolution No. 2708 declaring one (1) parcel of property as surplus property,
more particularly described in the resolution, as surplus to the needs of the City and authorize
the conveyance of said property, or take other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

 

3. Appproval to accept a Muskogee Medical Center Foundation grant in the amount of
$26,600.00 to be used to fund the Medical Director position for our EMR/First
Responder/Fire Departments, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)



 

4. Approval to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a transition agreement
from Spectra as a third-party contractor to the City of Muskogee for operations of the Civic
Center, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)

 

5. Approval to apply for the 2018 State of Oklahoma Emergency Management Performance
Grant (EMPG) in the amount of $25,000.00 to be used to fund Emergency Management
operations, or take other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

 

6. Approval to purchase eleven (11) digiTicket electronic ticket books from Saltus Technologies
for $35,144.00, or take other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

 

7. Approval to receive donated funds for the month of September 2017, in the amount of
$727.00 for the City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take
other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

 

8. Approval to direct Staff to bring forth a revised ordinance modifying City Code 22-674 and
22-675 removing permitting procedures for hospital and ambulatory care, or take other
necessary action.  (Marlon Coleman)

 

9. Approval of lowest and best bid from Rehrig Pacific Company in the amount of $552.50 per
tank for purchase of 81 two (2) cubic yard containers-rear loading for Fiscal year 2017-2018,
or take other necessary action. (Greg Riley)

 

REGULAR AGENDA
 

10. Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Ordinance No. 4031-A rezoning the
property located at 4421 Denison Street, more particularly described in the ordinance, from
"R-1" Single-Family Residential District, to "C-1" Local Commercial District, and if
approved, authorize Staff to revise the Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said change,
or take other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

 

  LOTS 7 AND 8 IN BLOCK 19 IN CANARD ADDITION TO THE CITY OF
MUSKOGEE, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE1/4) OF SECTION 14,
TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF
OKLAHOMA.

 

11. Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Ordinance No. 4032-A rezoning the
property located at 318 S. Cherokee Street, more particularly described in the ordinance, from
"R-1" Single-Family Residential District to "I-1" Light Industrial District, and if approved,
authorize Staff to revise the Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said change, or take
other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)  

 

  THE NORTH 61.4 FEET OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 367 MOT TO THE CITY OF



  THE NORTH 61.4 FEET OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 367 MOT TO THE CITY OF
MUSKOGEE, ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT THEREOF, LOCATED IN THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE
18 EAST,  MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

 

12. Consider approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat of Janie's Addition, consisting of one (1) lot
on 4.33 acres, located on the south side of Gibson Street, west of Civitan Park, or take other
necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)  

 

  A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE NW/4 NE/4 OF SECTION 30, T15N, R19E OF
THE I.B.& M., MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA: WITH THE BASIS
OF BEARING OF THIS DESCRIPTION BEING NAD83(93) OKLAHOMA STATE
PLANE, NORTH ZONE AND PREPARED ON 9/20/2017 BY TONY ROBINSON, LS
#1686: SAID TRACT OF LAND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY
METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NW CORNER OF THE
NW/4 NE/4 OF SECTION 30, THENCE N88°20'49"E ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF
SECTION 30 A DISTANCE OF 350.52 FEET; THENCE S5°00'51"W A DISTANCE OF
310.97 FEET; THENCE S89°00'47"W A DISTANCE OF 134.16 FEET; THENCE
S0°39'19"E A DISTANCE OF 228.39 FEET; THENCE N89°00'47"E A DISTANCE OF
152.92 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE; THENCE ON A CURVE RIGHT WITH A
RADIUS OF 2778.60 FEET AN ARC LENGTH OF 182.85 FEET AND A CHORD
WHICH BEARS S1°22'14"W A DISTANCE OF 182.82 FEET; THENCE S88°20'49"W A
DISTANCE OF 319.46 FEET; THENCE N1°39'11"W A DISTANCE OF 720.00 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 4.66 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

 

13. Consider approval of Ordinance No. 4030-A amending the City of Muskogee Code of
Ordinances, Chapter 2, Administration, Article II, Municipal Government Organization; by
Amending Section 2-20, Meetings of the Council, by providing for modified meeting times
for the City Council and City Council Committees; Providing for Repealer, Severability, and
Setting an Effective date, or take other necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker)

 

14. Consider approval to surplus 2004 Gradall XL3100 Excavator and to authorize the City
Manager to dispose of the same, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)

 

15. Discuss and take action approve an amendment to the cooperative agreement with the
Oklahoma Music Hall of Fame & Museum, Inc. providing for a supplemental appropriation
for fiscal year 2017-2018. (Mike Miller) 

 

RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to
speak is required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the particular
issue they wish to address. Under Oklahoma law, the Council Members are prohibited from
discussing or taking any action on items not on today’s agenda. If written materials are to be
submitted to the Council twelve (12) copies should be made available, and may not be returned.
 

16. Consider an Executive Session to discuss and take possible action on the following:



 

A. Pursuant to Section 307B.4, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in executive
session to discuss the worker’s compensation claim of Chad Farmer, and if necessary, take
appropriate action in open session. (Roy D. Tucker)

 

B. Pursuant to Section 307 C.10, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in
Executive Session for the purpose of conferring on matters pertaining to economic
development in the Northwest quadrant of the City as well as economic development
within the urban renewal area, and if necessary, take appropriate action in open session.
(Gary D. Garvin)

 

ADJOURN
 



   
Regular City Council           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Initiator: Ashley Wallace, Office Adm 1
Department: City Clerk
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: SPECIAL CALL CITY COUNCIL MINUTES OCTOBER 17, 2017 AND
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION OCTOBER 23, 2017.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
10-17-2017 spccmin 
10-23-2017 ccmin 



MINUTES
 

 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE,

OKLAHOMA, MET IN A SPECIAL CALL SESSION, IN
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF CITY HALL

MONDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2017
 

The Council of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in a Special Call Session in Council Chambers of
City Hall, Monday, October 17, 2017, at 7:00 p.m., with Mayor Coburn presiding.
Meeting was called to order by Mayor John R. Coburn and the City Clerk called the roll as follows:
 

Present: James Gulley, Deputy Mayor; Janey Boydston, Councilmember; Marlon Coleman,
Councilmember; Dan Hall, Councilmember; Derrick Reed, Councilmember; Ivory Vann,
Councilmember 

Absent: John R. Coburn, Mayor; Patrick Cale, Councilmember; Wayne Johnson, Councilmember 

Staff
Present:

Mike Miller, City Manager; Mike Stewart, Asst City Manager; Roy Tucker, City Attorney;
Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works Director; Michael O'Dell, Fire Chief;
Rex Eskridge, Police Chief; Carolyn Jones, Revenue Manager; Dan Hurd, Uniform Code
Inspector 

 

               
1      Consider entering into a lease agreement with the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs to

provide 440 parking spaces at Hatbox Field, or take other necessary action. (Roy D.
Tucker)

City Attorney Roy D. Tucker stated the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs seeks to
lease 440 parking spaces for employee parking during the construction period of a new
parking garage to be located east of the existing hospital. 
The lease is to provide the VA Hospital the use of the existing parking available at the
Hatbox Soccer complex.  The lot will predominantly be used during the daytime
Monday through Friday.  This will allow for parking for soccer activities during the
evening and weekends.  The VA will pay the City of Muskogee $20.00 per month per
parking space over the next five (5) years or $105,600.00 per year. 

Deputy Mayor James Gulley asked Mr. Tucker if it only takes four (4) years to complete
the VA parking garage, will the final year be voided.

City Attorney Roy D. Tucker stated yes, the VA has the option to get out of the lease if
an extra year is not necessary.  Based on how long the VA has been talking about this
and how their funding process works, he does not anticipate the project will be finished
early.  It is more likely that an extension will be needed.

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Dan Hall, seconded by Councilmember Janey



  Motion was made by Councilmember Dan Hall, seconded by Councilmember Janey
Boydston to approve a lease agreement with the U.S. Department of Veterans
Affairs to provide 440 parking spaces at Hatbox Field. 

  AYE:  Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey Boydston,
Councilmember Marlon Coleman, Councilmember Dan Hall,
Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
2   Consider an Executive Session to discuss and take possible action on the following:
 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Marlon Coleman, seconded by

Councilmember Dan Hall to approve an Executive Session. 

  AYE:  Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey Boydston,
Councilmember Marlon Coleman, Councilmember Dan Hall,
Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
A      Pursuant to Section 307B.4, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in

Executive Session to discuss the tort claim of Connie Aich, and if necessary, take
appropriate action in open session. (Roy D. Tucker)

City Council reconvened to regular session at 4:32 p.m.

City Attorney Roy D. Tucker stated after being fully briefed on legal theory and status of
liability, an appropriate motion would be to approve authorizing the City Attorney to
approve settlement in this claim in the amount of $31,000.00 and further authorize the
filing of a friendly suit. 

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Dan Hall, seconded by Councilmember

Marlon Coleman to approve convening in Executive Session to discuss the tort
claim of Connie Aich. 

  AYE:  Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey Boydston,
Councilmember Marlon Coleman, Councilmember Dan Hall,
Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
 

__________________________________
JOHN R COBURN, MAYOR

 
 
 
 

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK



 
 



MINUTES
 

 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE,

OKLAHOMA, MET IN REGULAR SESSION, IN
THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF CITY HALL

MONDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2017
 

The Council of the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers of City
Hall, Monday, October 23, 2017, at 7:00 p.m., with Mayor Coburn presiding.
Invocation was given by Councilmember Ivory Vann
 
Flag Salute was led by Mayor Bob Coburn
 
Meeting was called to order by Mayor John R. Coburn and the City Clerk called the roll as follows:
 

Present: Mayor John R. Coburn; Deputy Mayor James Gulley; Councilmember Janey Boydston;
Councilmember Marlon Coleman; Councilmember Wayne Johnson; Councilmember Derrick
Reed; Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Absent: Councilmember Patrick Cale; Councilmember Dan Hall 

Staff
Present:

Mike Stewart, Asst City Manager; Roy Tucker, City Attorney; Tammy L. Tracy, City Clerk;
Gary Garvin, City Planner; Greg Riley, Public Works Director; Matthew Beese, Assistant
City Attorney; Michael O'Dell, Fire Chief; Kelly Plunkett, Human Resources Director; Rex
Eskridge, Police Chief; Johnny Teehee, Deputy Police Chief 

               
1 Excuse the absence of Councilmembers Dan Hall and Patrick Cale.
 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor James Gulley, seconded by Councilmember Marlon

Coleman to approve the absence of Councilmembers Dan Hall and Patrick Cale. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Marlon Coleman, Councilmember Wayne Johnson,
Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  SPECIAL CALL CITY COUNCIL MINUTES October 3, 2017 and
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION October 9, 2017

  

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Wayne Johnson, seconded by Councilmember

Janey Boydston  to approve Special Call City Council minutes October 3, 2017 and City
Council Regular Session minutes October 9, 2017. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Marlon Coleman, Councilmember Wayne Johnson,
Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 



Carried - Unanimously 

 
CONSENT AGENDA

 
  Motion was made by Deputy Mayor James Gulley, seconded by Councilmember Janey

Boydston to approve Consent Agenda. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Marlon Coleman, Councilmember Wayne Johnson,
Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
The following items are considered to be routine by the City Council and will not be read
aloud. The Consent Agenda will be enacted with one motion and should discussion be desired
on an item, that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda prior to action and
considered separately prior to the Regular Agenda.
 

 
1 Approval of claims for all city departments September 29, 2017 through October 11, 2017.   
 
2 Approval of a Mutual Police Assistance Agreement between the Jack C. Montgomery

Veteran Affairs Medical Center/The United States Department of Veterans Affairs and the
City of Muskogee, or take other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

  

 
3 Approval of an Intergovernmental Cross-Deputization Agreement between the United States,

The Muscogee (Creek) Nation, and Political Subdivisions of the State of Oklahoma and the
City of Muskogee Police Department, or take other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

  

 
4 Consider approval of Resolution No. 2707 giving notice to the Secretary of the Muskogee

County Election Board and calling a City General Election for Tuesday, the 13th of
February, 2018, and a Run-Off Election in the event respective candidates for the offices of
Mayor and Council members do not receive a majority vote, with said Run-Off Election to
be held for Tuesday, the 3rd of April, 2018; Establishing filing, withdrawal and contest
periods; Closing the 45th and 40th voting precincts; and Establishing all the same pursuant to
the Charter of the City of Muskogee and the revised State election laws, or take other
necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker)

  

 
5 Approval of the appointment of E. Cedric Johnson to serve a five (5) year term on the Martin

Luther King Jr. Community Center Trust Authority, beginning November 1, 2017, and
ending July 31, 2022, replacing David Ragsdale, or take other necessary action. (Councilor
James Gulley)

  

 
REGULAR AGENDA

 
6 Discussion and possible approval of a proposal to change the times of City Council meetings   



6 Discussion and possible approval of a proposal to change the times of City Council meetings
and City Council Committee meetings, or take other necessary action (Councilor Wayne
Johnson). 

Councilmember Wayne Johnson stated Committee meetings are typically held at 4:00 p.m.
on the first and third Tuesdays of the month, with City Council meetings being held at 7:00
p.m. every second and fourth Monday of the month.  After discussion in previous committee
meetings, Councilor Wayne Johnson proposed moving both meetings to 5:30 p.m., to be held
on the same days as they are currently held, allowing for easier access for the public as well
preventing council members from having to take time out of the work day to attend these
meetings.  Mr. Johnson proposes the new meeting times would start with the January 2018
calendar year.

Deputy Mayor James Gulley stated to prevent any confusion, he feels the meetings should be
held on the same day whether it be a Monday, Tuesday, or Thursday.  This way the citizens
will always know what day and time City Council and Public Works and Finance meetings
will be held.

Councilmember Marlon Coleman stated he agrees with Deputy Mayor James Gulley's
decision because it can be confusing explaining to residents that Council meets every other
Monday and every other Tuesday.  If Council could decide on the same day and time each
week, it would be much easier to explain.

Deputy Mayor James Gulley stated he likes the idea of moving the meeting time to 5:30
p.m., but feels that meetings should be held the same day each week.

Councilmember Wayne Johnson stated he would not be opposed to having the Public Works
and Finance and City Council meetings the same time and day each week.

Mayor Bob Coburn asked if the meetings are set on Monday, how many holidays fall on
Monday and what kind of problem would that cause.

Councilmember Janey Boydston stated in the past if there was a Monday meeting that fell on
a holiday, the meeting was moved to Tuesday. 

Councilmember Derrick Reed stated he has a conflict that would interfere with meetings
being held on Thursday so he suggests Monday as well.

Councilmember Ivory Vann stated he is proud of Councilmember Wayne Johnson for getting
the meeting times changed.  He has tried in the past to bring this to Council, but nothing ever
came of his proposal and he wanted to thank Mr. Johnson for being able to make a change.

Mayor Bob Coburn asked Councilmember Ivory Vann if he prefers to have meetings on
Monday or Tuesday night.

Councilmember Ivory Vann stated it does not make a difference to him.

Councilmember Wayne Johnson stated he would like to make a motion for Monday, Public
Works and Finance meetings at 5:30 p.m., and Monday, City Council meetings at 5:30 p.m.
to begin January 2018 and if the meeting falls on a holiday the meeting will be moved to
Tuesday.

  



City Attorney Roy D. Tucker stated the meeting times and days are set by Ordinance so the
Council will need to bring back an Ordinance to effectively make this change.  It is in City
Code 2-20, if the motion passes an Ordinance will be made that articulates the motion with
and effective date of January 1, 2018.

Deputy Mayor James Gulley asked Mr. Tucker if the Purchasing Meetings could be moved
to Mondays at 5:00 p.m. before the Public Works and Finance meeting or does this need to
be done by Ordinance as well.

City Attorney Roy D. Tucker stated that decision does not need to be made by Ordinance. 
As long as the decision is made prior to the December 15, 2017 filing date that modification
can be made.

Stephen Ezell, 6121 S. 6th St. East, Muskogee, Oklahoma, stated he is very much in favor of
this change.  Currently the City Council meetings start late and can be lengthy.  By moving
the time to 5:30 p.m. people can get home, have dinner, and spend time with their family.

 
  Motion was made by Councilmember Wayne Johnson, seconded by Councilmember

Marlon Coleman to approve proposal to change the times of City Council meetings and
City Council committee meetings. 

  AYE:  Mayor John R. Coburn, Deputy Mayor James Gulley, Councilmember Janey
Boydston, Councilmember Marlon Coleman, Councilmember Wayne Johnson,
Councilmember Derrick Reed, Councilmember Ivory Vann 

Carried - Unanimously 

 
7 (No Action Taken:)  Receive presentation of plaque for Elliott Park dedication on

November 2, 2017 at 5:00 p.m. (Councilor Marlon Coleman)

Councilmember Marlon Coleman stated he would like to invite everyone to participate in the
dedication of Elliott Park as a historical marker, in memory of the people who made the
sacrifice for the park to be there.  The dedication will be Thursday, November 2, 2017 at
5:00 p.m.  A plaque will be placed on a rock at the park for all people to read and enjoy.

  

 
RECOGNIZE CITIZENS WISHING TO SPEAK TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL.

Council Rules of Decorum limit citizen comments to three (3) minutes. Any person desiring to
speak is required to sign-in with the City Clerk, provide their name, address, and the
particular issue they wish to address. Under Oklahoma law, the Council Members are
prohibited from discussing or taking any action on items not on today’s agenda. If written
materials are to be submitted to the Council twelve (12) copies should be made available, and
may not be returned.

Wayne Johnson, 1505 N. 16th, Muskogee, Oklahoma, stated he had the honor of being at the
Oklahoma Academy Conference.  Prior to attending he did not have much knowledge of the
Oklahoma Academy.  Mr. Johnson stated this is a bipartisan group that has town hall meetings to
talk about how Oklahoma votes.  He discovered how challenging and rewarding the Oklahoma
Academy can be.  Mr. Johnson stated if citizens want to be part of making a difference, he feels
they should become a part of this.



Mayor Bob Coburn stated he would like to point out that only 14% to 17% of the registered voters
in the City of Muskogee vote, and that is not good.

Stephen Ezell, 6121 S. 6th St. East, Muskogee, Oklahoma, stated there are new changes made
regarding City bus stops and where people can be picked up.  He feels there needs to be benches
and more visible signs at City bus stops.  There are people waiting at these stops who may not be
able to stand for long periods of time.  These people need a place to sit.  He feels this will be
beneficial to the City and the citizens who ride the bus. 

 
ADJOURN

 

__________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

 
 
 
 

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK

 
 



   
Regular City Council 1.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Initiator: Karen Felts, Office Administrator
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of claims for all city departments October 12, 2017 through October 31, 2017. 

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Claims 10.12.17 to 10.31.17 



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194425 121 HUTTON, SHAKAI F 10/12/2017 100.00
194426 2 ACCURATE LABS & TRAINING CENTE 10/13/2017 2,180.00
194427 2713 ACTION GROUP STAFFING 10/13/2017 6,364.87
194428 2461 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 64771111001 10/13/2017 582.71
194429 1369 ALL-STATE ELECTRIC MOTORS INC 10/13/2017 426.83
194430 6 AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 10/13/2017 104.23
194431 158 ANCHOR AUTO GLASS 10/13/2017 195.00
194432 4406 AT&T #918 682-2825 211 0 10/13/2017 1,021.20
194433 52 AUFFENBERG CHEVROLET CADILLAC 10/13/2017 77.43
194434 11 B & J OIL CO INC 10/13/2017 19,198.18
194435 4361 BANCFIRST 10/13/2017 13,125.00
194436 4543 VIDA BERRY 10/13/2017 458.33
194437 2853 BLESSED GROUND MAINTENANCE 10/13/2017 200.00
194438 862 BOB'S AUTOMOTIVE ELECTRIC 10/13/2017 85.00
194439 5036 BOUNDLESS NETWORK, INC. 10/13/2017 95.91
194440 2072 BRAINERD CHEMICAL COMPANY INC 10/13/2017 4,752.50
194441 259 BRENNTAG SOUTHWEST INC 10/13/2017 11,515.20
194442 3238 BROKEN ARROW ELECTRIC 10/13/2017 1,406.57
194443 2552 BROWN'S SHOE FIT CO #87 10/13/2017 430.00
194444 5138 C & C SUPPLY AND SERVICE CO. 10/13/2017 288.00
194445 4682 C & D RENTAL & SALES 10/13/2017 840.00
194446 992 CARE AROUND THE CLOCK INC 10/13/2017 3,608.43
194447 5131 ESTHELA CASALE 10/13/2017 108.00
194448 164 CASCO INDUSTRIES INCORPORATED 10/13/2017 343.00
194449 5175 JAN CHAMPAGNE 10/13/2017 18.00
194450 5264 BAILEE CHAPMAN 10/13/2017 56.00
194451 3640 CHARBONNEAU, BILLY JO 10/13/2017 72.00
194452 820 CHIEF FIRE & SAFETY 10/13/2017 299.00
194453 4933 CINTAS CORPORATION #2 10/13/2017 101.08
194454 3442 CITY OF MUSKOGEE FOUNDATION 10/13/2017 5,287.36
194455 4738 CITYWIDE PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 10/13/2017 1,455.64
194456 5106 CLINICAL ASSOCIATES PA 10/13/2017 600.00
194457 1560 THE COLLISION CENTER OF MUSKOG 10/13/2017 853.60
194458 3066 COMMUNITY CARE EAP 10/13/2017 323.05
194459 2651 THOMAS CRABTREE 10/13/2017 6,787.50
194460 4311 DAVID'S DISCOUNT TIRES INC 10/13/2017 774.42
194461 25 DEALERS ELECTRICAL SUPPLY 10/13/2017 386.63
194462 3991 DIRT WORK DONE RIGHT 10/13/2017 3,500.00
194463 170 EAST CENTRAL ELECTRIC 10/13/2017 445.78
194464 4862 SARAH EATON 10/13/2017 90.00

1



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194465 4427 EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC 10/13/2017 440.74
194466 953 EXPRESS EMPLOYMENT PROFESSIONA 10/13/2017 5,305.01
194467 29 FASTENAL COMPANY 10/13/2017 983.34
194468 5191 BETHANY FERGUSON 10/13/2017 72.00
194469 303 FIRE SERVICE TRAINING 10/13/2017 250.00
194470 133 FIVE STAR OFFICE SUPPLY 10/13/2017 1,123.44
194471 4644 ANDRAE FREEMAN 10/13/2017 400.00
194472 1861 G E ANALYTICAL INSTRUMENTS INC 10/13/2017 1,521.70
194473 5247 NIKYA GIVENS 10/13/2017 108.00
194474 340 GOODYEAR AUTO SERVICE CENTER 10/13/2017 5,254.65
194475 34 GRAINGER 10/13/2017 136.21
194476 2764 GRISSOMS LLC 10/13/2017 4,040.53
194477 2412 GT DISTRIBUTORS INC 10/13/2017 1,481.13
194478 337 HACH COMPANY 10/13/2017 632.46
194479 40 HARRISON TIRE & SUPPLY 10/13/2017 150.00
194480 554 HAYNES EQUIPMENT COMPANY 10/13/2017 234.70
194481 181 HIX AIR CONDITIONING SERVICE 10/13/2017 828.00
194482 4857 I 40 RACE SERVICE LLC 10/13/2017 1,183.75
194483 45 IBT INC 10/13/2017 26.01
194484 4902 IMPERIAL LLC 10/13/2017 237.50
194485 1217 INCOG 10/13/2017 4,000.00
194486 184 INLAND TRUCK PARTS COMPANY 10/13/2017 710.56
194487 186 JAMES HODGE FORD-LINCOLN-MERC 10/13/2017 1,043.08
194488 779 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL F.S.B. 10/13/2017 85.98
194489 983 JOHNSON'S SERVICE COMPANY 10/13/2017 2,823.97
194490 188 KING TIRES OF MUSKOGEE INC 10/13/2017 45.79
194491 53 LAKE REGION ELECTRIC COOPERATI 10/13/2017 304.50
194492 369 LAKELAND FLORIST 10/13/2017 37.00
194493 4742 KAREN LAUDERDALE 10/13/2017 72.00
194494 399 LOCKE SUPPLY CO 10/13/2017 67.75
194495 56 LOWES 10/13/2017 826.53
194496 2967 MAIN STREET MUSKOGEE, INC 10/13/2017 10,000.00
194497 4246 MARVIN'S MOWERS AND OUTDOOR LL 10/13/2017 285.77
194498 4956 MEDNOW URGENT CARE LLC 10/13/2017 1,299.00
194499 194 MORGAN SERVICES COMPANY LLC 10/13/2017 225.00
194500 1992 MUNICIPALH2O.COM 10/13/2017 500.00
194501 5195 MUSCOGEE STAFFING SOLUTIONS, L 10/13/2017 4,791.56
194502 835 MUSKOGEE AREA ARTS COUNCIL 10/13/2017 10,000.00
194503 195 MUSKOGEE COUNTY CLERK 10/13/2017 312.00
194504 62 MUSKOGEE COUNTY SHERIFFS DEPAR 10/13/2017 39,732.00

2



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194505 63 MUSKOGEE DAILY PHOENIX 10/13/2017 112.20
194506 370 MUSKOGEE FARMERS ASSOCIATION 10/13/2017 390.00
194507 265 MUSKOGEE OVERHEAD DOOR 10/13/2017 675.00
194508 1696 MUSKOGEE READY MIX LLC 10/13/2017 10,337.50
194509 3758 NATIONAL ORGANIZATION OF BLACK 10/13/2017 150.00
194510 3652 NEWTON EQUIPMENT LLC 10/13/2017 12.12
194511 1944 OFFICE CONNECTIONS LLC 10/13/2017 153.36
194512 114 OFFICE DEPOT 10/13/2017 572.35
194513 974 OKLAHOMA BAR ASSOCIATION 10/13/2017 115.00
194514 3906 OKLAHOMA MECHANICAL INSPECTORS 10/13/2017 150.00
194515 452 OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL ASSURANCE G 10/13/2017 123,671.00
194516 67 OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS 10/13/2017 107.16
194517 349 OKLAHOMA SECRETARY OF STATE 10/13/2017 10.00
194518 239 OKLAHOMA TAX COMMISSION 10/13/2017 66.00
194519 2763 ONE SOURCE WATER LLC 10/13/2017 94.50
194520 70 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 10/13/2017 2,013.53
194521 71 ORPS 10/13/2017 875.00
194522 2786 OZARK LASER & SHORING, INC. 10/13/2017 450.00
194523 73 PATE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC 10/13/2017 175.44
194524 3024 PHIL BLAIR 10/13/2017 38.00
194525 3578 PIED PIPER SERVICES 10/13/2017 846.00
194526 204 PIONEER ABSTRACT & TITLE COMPA 10/13/2017 500.00
194527 1597 PIONEER'S JANITORIAL SVC 10/13/2017 345.00
194528 3044 PUBLIC ENGINES INC 10/13/2017 1,500.00
194529 3420 RIVERSIDE AUTOPLEX OF MUSKOGEE 10/13/2017 70.08
194530 5246 ROBERTS TRUCK CENTER HOLDING C 10/13/2017 248.16
194531 149 ROSSON WHEEL SERVICE 10/13/2017 50.00
194532 4866 ROXY OPERATING ACCOUNT 10/13/2017 4,000.00
194533 1058 ROY'S UPHOLSTERY 10/13/2017 125.00
194534 84 SADLER PAPER COMPANY 10/13/2017 89.09
194535 2635 SIMPSON CARPENTRY SERVICE 10/13/2017 13,000.00
194536 358 SIRCHIE FINGER PRINT 10/13/2017 230.85
194537 3739 SLAPE, INETTE 10/13/2017 54.00
194538 1248 SPRINT PCS 10/13/2017 5,779.22
194539 5269 STACEY BROWN DBA OKLAHOMA UP N 10/13/2017 400.00
194540 5267 STAUB INVESTMENTS INC. DBA GAL 10/13/2017 16.00
194541 92 STUART C IRBY CO 10/13/2017 206.57
194542 93 SUPERIOR LINEN SERVICE INC 10/13/2017 143.03
194543 3868 SUREEXPRESS 10/13/2017 50.00
194544 3024 TAMMY TRACY 10/13/2017 62.00

3



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194545 94 TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES 10/13/2017 2,639.44
194546 362 TENDER TOUCH AUTO WASH INC 10/13/2017 611.00
194547 108 THREE RIVERS MUSEUM 10/13/2017 4,166.66
194548 5187 TIGER TRUCK INDUSTRIES 10/13/2017 32.37
194549 4183 TONY'S TIRE SERVICE INC 10/13/2017 150.00
194550 4572 TRANSUNION RISK & ALTERNATIVE 10/13/2017 111.00
194551 4446 TULSA ASPHALT LLC 10/13/2017 1,065.48
194552 97 UNIFIRST HOLDINGS LP 10/13/2017 921.98
194553 796 UTILITY SUPPLY CO 10/13/2017 4,230.20
194554 3386 UTILITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES IN 10/13/2017 5,985.00
194555 4492 VISION SERVICES PLAN, OKLAHOMA 10/13/2017 9,270.74
194556 335 WARREN CAT 10/13/2017 822.41
194557 215 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OKLAHOMA I 10/13/2017 48.00
194558 717 WAYMAN, CINDY 10/13/2017 532.00
194559 329 WELDON PARTS - MUSKOGEE 10/13/2017 313.25
194560 4901 LAURA WICKIZER 10/13/2017 36.00
194561 3629 YELLOWHOUSE MACHINERY CO 10/13/2017 800.52
194562 3151 BANK OF OKLAHOMA-WEALTH MANAGE 10/13/2017 4,921.92
194563 3024 JEAN KINGSTON 10/13/2017 62.00
194564 5305 JOHN C TEDESCO DO PA 10/13/2017 4,600.00
194565 3024 MARCIE GILLIAM 10/13/2017 62.00
194566 3024 MIKE MILLER 10/13/2017 865.42
194567 3952 BANK OF AMERICA 10/16/2017 3,764.27
194568 121 BEAVER, CHRISTINA M 10/17/2017 48.49
194569 121 BROWN, ANITA S 10/17/2017 42.96
194570 121 CHERRY, RONALD & RENETTA 10/17/2017 5.10
194571 121 GREEN, NANCY 10/17/2017 25.89
194572 121 GUERRERO, ANNALYCIA M 10/17/2017 44.60
194573 121 HARRISON, JACK D. 10/17/2017 10.05
194574 121 HAYES, WANDA P 10/17/2017 61.85
194575 121 MILLER, VERDELL 10/17/2017 0.71
194576 121 MOORE, CAROLYN 10/17/2017 211.92
194577 121 MUSK. ARTS DIST. HOMES 10/17/2017 50.94
194578 121 MUSKOGEE AFFORDABLE HOUSING 10/17/2017 75.08
194579 121 PALMER, RODNEY 10/17/2017 3.16
194580 121 TRIMBLE GEORGIA D 10/17/2017 15.92
194581 121 WARD, HERBERT 10/17/2017 1.28
194582 121 WINGET, HENRY 10/17/2017 5.00
194583 121 BROWN, RICHARD J 10/18/2017 59.80
194584 121 COX, SARAH W 10/18/2017 20.93

4



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194585 121 DAVIS, JON M 10/18/2017 6.39
194586 121 DUKE, TINA M 10/18/2017 7.19
194587 121 GARNER, CAROL 10/18/2017 1.09
194588 121 HENRY, ARIANA 10/18/2017 66.72
194589 121 HILL, JAMES R 10/18/2017 27.93
194590 121 HORNBUCKLE CAPITAL 10/18/2017 39.72
194591 121 JOHNSON, KRYSTAL NICHOLE 10/18/2017 22.93
194592 121 MCCAF, INC 10/18/2017 5.73
194593 121 MUELLER, DIANA L 10/18/2017 50.26
194594 121 MUSK. ART DIST. HOMES 10/18/2017 37.86
194595 121 NUNN, DEREK 10/18/2017 45.36
194596 121 PETTIT, JAROD 10/18/2017 49.81
194597 121 PETTIT, JARROD 10/18/2017 18.86
194598 121 RIGGS, CHARLES 10/18/2017 11.03
194599 121 SHINN PROPERTIES 10/18/2017 38.70
194600 121 SLAPE CONSTRUCTION 10/18/2017 49.95
194601 121 STEWART, MARVIN R 10/18/2017 17.58
194602 121 WALLACE, JACKIE 10/18/2017 26.82
194603 4468 BLUECROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF OK 10/18/2017 55,660.54
194604 3024 ABIGAIL WRIGHT 10/20/2017 12.00
194605 2 ACCURATE LABS & TRAINING CENTE 10/20/2017 2,040.00
194606 155 ACECO RENTAL AND SALES 10/20/2017 198.32
194607 2713 ACTION GROUP STAFFING 10/20/2017 7,253.69
194608 2461 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 64771111001 10/20/2017 19.07
194609 1386 AIR CLEANING TECHNOLOGIES INC 10/20/2017 297.98
194610 3 AIRGAS USA LLC 10/20/2017 142.44
194611 4582 ALL SAFE INDUSTRIES, INC 10/20/2017 1,318.51
194612 1369 ALL-STATE ELECTRIC MOTORS INC 10/20/2017 839.94
194613 6 AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 10/20/2017 408.50
194614 5167 ANIMAL MEDICAL CENTER #15603 10/20/2017 613.00
194615 4724 AOS, LLC 10/20/2017 7,415.10
194616 914 APAC CENTRAL INC 10/20/2017 11,269.17
194617 3976 AT&T #918 A04-0694 003 3 10/20/2017 760.00
194618 4267 AT&T #918 147-0140 002 4 10/20/2017 1,012.00
194619 2252 AT&T #918 147-5528 713 7 10/20/2017 378.00
194620 2595 AT&T MOBILITY 10/20/2017 335.47
194621 52 AUFFENBERG CHEVROLET CADILLAC 10/20/2017 62.26
194622 11 B & J OIL CO INC 10/20/2017 15,395.77
194623 5298 BEST & SHARP, INC. 10/20/2017 62.50
194624 2905 BETTY OUTHIER WILLIAMS LAW OFF 10/20/2017 286.11

5



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194625 3075 BIO-AQUATIC TESTING 10/20/2017 850.00
194626 862 BOB'S AUTOMOTIVE ELECTRIC 10/20/2017 45.00
194627 125 BOBBY STRICKLAND 10/20/2017 30.00
194628 3024 BRENDA REGAN 10/20/2017 171.61
194629 3238 BROKEN ARROW ELECTRIC 10/20/2017 2,316.43
194630 3024 BROOKE HALL 10/20/2017 90.00
194631 2552 BROWN'S SHOE FIT CO #87 10/20/2017 520.00
194632 3912 BURTON POOLS AND SPAS, LLC 10/20/2017 573.36
194633 5138 C & C SUPPLY AND SERVICE CO. 10/20/2017 512.20
194634 164 CASCO INDUSTRIES INCORPORATED 10/20/2017 128.00
194635 3024 CHRIS CUMMINGS 10/20/2017 371.86
194636 3365 CHUPP IMPLEMENT COMPANY 10/20/2017 1,166.86
194637 3442 CITY OF MUSKOGEE FOUNDATION 10/20/2017 2,600.00
194638 4300 CLIFFORD POWER SYSTEMS INC 10/20/2017 867.00
194639 1560 THE COLLISION CENTER OF MUSKOG 10/20/2017 14,252.55
194640 2292 CORE & MAIN LP 10/20/2017 1,118.16
194641 5020 COWAN GROUP ENGINEERING LLC 10/20/2017 68,244.64
194642 101 CROWL OIL CO INC 10/20/2017 610.50
194643 5075 CYNMAR LLC 10/20/2017 60.77
194644 3024 DAN HURD 10/20/2017 108.00
194645 4311 DAVID'S DISCOUNT TIRES INC 10/20/2017 153.68
194646 26 DELL MARKETING LP 10/20/2017 3,512.84
194647 262 DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QU 10/20/2017 62.00
194648 3991 DIRT WORK DONE RIGHT 10/20/2017 4,285.00
194649 3133 JERRY L DORR 10/20/2017 110.80
194650 117 DOUG LANE 10/20/2017 56.50
194651 4167 COLLEEN DURBIN 10/20/2017 600.00
194652 170 EAST CENTRAL ELECTRIC 10/20/2017 303.23
194653 5307 EDWARDS AND PATTERSON LAW FIRM 10/20/2017 31,000.00
194654 3024 EILEEN VANKIRK 10/20/2017 934.00
194655 3113 EMPIRE PAPER CO 10/20/2017 137.60
194656 3435 ERGON ASPHALT & EMULSIONS INC 10/20/2017 939.63
194657 953 EXPRESS EMPLOYMENT PROFESSIONA 10/20/2017 3,692.98
194658 29 FASTENAL COMPANY 10/20/2017 413.33
194659 537 FERRARA FIRE APPARATUS INC 10/20/2017 1,973.83
194660 133 FIVE STAR OFFICE SUPPLY 10/20/2017 3,240.87
194661 3509 FLEETPRIDE INC 10/20/2017 466.88
194662 3024 GARY GARVIN 10/20/2017 65.00
194663 34 GRAINGER 10/20/2017 1,162.32
194664 1303 GREEN COUNTRY TESTING 10/20/2017 260.00

6



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194665 2764 GRISSOMS LLC 10/20/2017 103.84
194666 4996 H & G PAVING CONSTRACTORS, INC 10/20/2017 21,208.50
194667 40 HARRISON TIRE & SUPPLY 10/20/2017 94.00
194668 5194 HAWKINS, INC. 10/20/2017 16,470.72
194669 554 HAYNES EQUIPMENT COMPANY 10/20/2017 227.20
194670 117 HEIDI MASTERSON 10/20/2017 45.00
194671 181 HIX AIR CONDITIONING SERVICE 10/20/2017 284.00
194672 377 HOFFMAN PRINTING CO INC 10/20/2017 1,662.00
194673 42 HOGLE COMPANY 10/20/2017 959.70
194674 1414 HOMELAND STORES INC 10/20/2017 172.56
194675 111 HUGHES LUMBER CO 10/20/2017 145.24
194676 4902 IMPERIAL LLC 10/20/2017 375.10
194677 427 INCOR 10/20/2017 2,025.00
194678 47 THE J & E CORPORATION 10/20/2017 139.95
194679 3024 KAREN COKER 10/20/2017 0.00
194680 3024 KELLY PLUNKETT 10/20/2017 100.31
194681 4467 KEVIN HERON TOOLS - SNAP ON 10/20/2017 17,500.00
194682 3128 LA QUINTA INN & SUITE- MIDWEST 10/20/2017 776.00
194683 2363 LEADSONLINE LLC 10/20/2017 4,548.00
194684 964 LOVE BOTTLING CO - #111902 10/20/2017 66.80
194685 56 LOWES 10/20/2017 1,204.25
194686 3024 MARK WILKERSON 10/20/2017 90.00
194687 4246 MARVIN'S MOWERS AND OUTDOOR LL 10/20/2017 487.65
194688 840 MATHIS PRINTING 10/20/2017 245.00
194689 4519 MID AMERICA METER, INC 10/20/2017 156.25
194690 3024 MIKE HEDGE 10/20/2017 64.47
194691 194 MORGAN SERVICES COMPANY LLC 10/20/2017 140.00
194692 5195 MUSCOGEE STAFFING SOLUTIONS, L 10/20/2017 4,719.40
194693 139 MUSKOGEE CITY-COUNTY PORT AUTH 10/20/2017 30,373.75
194694 546 MUSKOGEE COUNTY DISTRICT COURT 10/20/2017 219.14
194695 341 MUSKOGEE LOCK & KEY 10/20/2017 43.50
194696 1426 NATIONAL TACTICAL OFFICERS ASS 10/20/2017 345.00
194697 2509 O C I 10/20/2017 51.17
194698 1944 OFFICE CONNECTIONS LLC 10/20/2017 713.20
194699 114 OFFICE DEPOT 10/20/2017 684.51
194700 2879 OKLAHOMA ANIMAL CONTROL ASSOCI 10/20/2017 175.00
194701 937 OKLA. ASSOC OF MUNICIPAL ATTOR 10/20/2017 480.00
194702 1499 OKLAHOMA FLOODPLAIN MANAGERS A 10/20/2017 75.00
194703 272 OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 10/20/2017 0.00
194704 67 OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS 10/20/2017 1,009.61

7



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194705 349 OKLAHOMA SECRETARY OF STATE 10/20/2017 25.00
194706 68 OKLAHOMA TURNPIKE AUTHORITY (O 10/20/2017 84.61
194707 3471 OKLAHOMA UNIFORM BUILDING CODE 10/20/2017 84.00
194708 2763 ONE SOURCE WATER LLC 10/20/2017 13.00
194709 70 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 10/20/2017 2,038.05
194710 73 PATE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC 10/20/2017 578.94
194711 204 PIONEER ABSTRACT & TITLE COMPA 10/20/2017 300.00
194712 204 PIONEER ABSTRACT & TITLE COMPA 10/20/2017 73,978.00
194713 2154 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL 10/20/2017 1,000.00
194714 4795 PREMIER TRUCK GROUP 10/20/2017 1,957.35
194715 5008 PREMIER USA INC. 10/20/2017 1,999.50
194716 3420 RIVERSIDE AUTOPLEX OF MUSKOGEE 10/20/2017 884.00
194717 5246 ROBERTS TRUCK CENTER HOLDING C 10/20/2017 27.90
194718 149 ROSSON WHEEL SERVICE 10/20/2017 85.00
194719 496 ROYAL SIGN AND GRAPHIC INC 10/20/2017 120.00
194720 84 SADLER PAPER COMPANY 10/20/2017 4,293.84
194721 2503 SAFETY FIRE EXTINGUISHERS 10/20/2017 20.00
194722 3954 SCOTT-MERRIMAN INC 10/20/2017 1,211.76
194723 380 SEARS COMMERCIAL ONE 10/20/2017 448.57
194724 4554 STIGLER MILLING COMPANY, LLC 10/20/2017 380.67
194725 92 STUART C IRBY CO 10/20/2017 543.88
194726 2104 SUDDENLINK 10/20/2017 8,375.73
194727 212 SUNSET CHEMICAL COMPANY 10/20/2017 200.00
194728 93 SUPERIOR LINEN SERVICE INC 10/20/2017 45.04
194729 2673 TASER INTERNATIONAL 10/20/2017 303.68
194730 94 TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES 10/20/2017 3,057.46
194731 5140 TILLMAN LEARNING LLC DBA 10/20/2017 3,595.00
194732 5022 TIM'S TRANSMISSION 10/20/2017 700.00
194733 4446 TULSA ASPHALT LLC 10/20/2017 2,156.44
194734 97 UNIFIRST HOLDINGS LP 10/20/2017 1,844.64
194735 61 US TREASURY - CREDIT TO 10/20/2017 1,350.00
194736 61 US TREASURY - CREDIT TO 10/20/2017 450.00
194737 572 USA BLUEBOOK 10/20/2017 133.22
194738 796 UTILITY SUPPLY CO 10/20/2017 7,671.28
194739 3386 UTILITY TECHNOLOGY SERVICES IN 10/20/2017 5,000.00
194740 382 WALMART STORES 10/20/2017 130.08
194741 215 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OKLAHOMA I 10/20/2017 14,440.47
194742 309 WEST GROUP 10/20/2017 938.90
194743 3629 YELLOWHOUSE MACHINERY CO 10/20/2017 289.08
194744 4738 CITYWIDE PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 10/20/2017 1,564.14

8



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194745 5309 ADAPTIVE ENTERPRISES, LLC 10/20/2017 3,300.00
194746 272 OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 10/20/2017 1,460.00
194747 272 OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 10/20/2017 50.00
194748 121 BROWN, BETTY J 10/24/2017 32.98
194749 121 CROSBY, CINDY 10/24/2017 40.00
194750 121 DUGAN, DAWNETTA 10/24/2017 109.45
194751 121 FANNING, JERRI 10/24/2017 100.00
194752 121 GIBSON, HAROLD A JR. 10/24/2017 21.11
194753 121 HOSKIN, AMY D 10/24/2017 45.33
194754 121 MORONEY, JAMES J 10/24/2017 55.36
194755 121 ONEAL, JEFFERY T 10/24/2017 43.28
194756 121 PLANT, ASHLEY L 10/24/2017 37.08
194757 121 PROBST, TRACY 10/24/2017 48.15
194758 121 REI, LLC 10/24/2017 43.70
194759 121 RUTLEDGE, DON 10/24/2017 61.27
194760 121 SMITH, JERRY 10/24/2017 5.73
194761 4468 BLUECROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF OK 10/24/2017 38,225.06
194762 121 CROW, MILDRED M. 10/25/2017 43.59
194763 2713 ACTION GROUP STAFFING 10/25/2017 3,950.97
194764 2461 ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 64771111001 10/25/2017 1,340.91
194765 1911 AMERICAN MUNICIPAL SERVICES 10/25/2017 438.60
194766 158 ANCHOR AUTO GLASS 10/25/2017 249.00
194767 5166 ANIMAL MEDICAL CENTER #15597 10/25/2017 755.00
194768 3024 ANTHONY BROWN 10/25/2017 92.00
194769 52 AUFFENBERG CHEVROLET CADILLAC 10/25/2017 189.11
194770 1079 AUTOMATIC ENGINEERING INC 10/25/2017 996.24
194771 11 B & J OIL CO INC 10/25/2017 374.79
194772 780 BG PRODUCTS INC 10/25/2017 4,242.00
194773 2853 BLESSED GROUND MAINTENANCE 10/25/2017 900.00
194774 5036 BOUNDLESS NETWORK, INC. 10/25/2017 375.20
194775 117 BRIAN GARNER 10/25/2017 56.50
194776 4701 BROCK SUPPLY CO 10/25/2017 408.14
194777 3238 BROKEN ARROW ELECTRIC 10/25/2017 9,291.04
194778 578 CAGLE AUTO CRUSHERS & SALVAGE 10/25/2017 80.00
194779 5131 ESTHELA CASALE 10/25/2017 72.00
194780 294 CDW GOVERNMENT INC 10/25/2017 378.24
194781 5175 JAN CHAMPAGNE 10/25/2017 90.00
194782 3640 CHARBONNEAU, BILLY JO 10/25/2017 54.00
194783 820 CHIEF FIRE & SAFETY 10/25/2017 576.00
194784 4738 CITYWIDE PROPERTY MAINTENANCE 10/25/2017 3,059.49

9



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194785 1560 THE COLLISION CENTER OF MUSKOG 10/25/2017 88.00
194786 2292 CORE & MAIN LP 10/25/2017 1,121.31
194787 5020 COWAN GROUP ENGINEERING LLC 10/25/2017 1,113.00
194788 2651 THOMAS CRABTREE 10/25/2017 7,687.50
194789 5277 D&D AG SERVICE LLC 10/25/2017 10,440.00
194790 4311 DAVID'S DISCOUNT TIRES INC 10/25/2017 25.36
194791 25 DEALERS ELECTRICAL SUPPLY 10/25/2017 1,878.47
194792 117 DEREK TATUM 10/25/2017 25.00
194793 3024 DILLON SWAIM 10/25/2017 62.00
194794 650 DIRECT TRAFFIC CONTROL INC 10/25/2017 11,024.60
194795 4862 SARAH EATON 10/25/2017 108.00
194796 953 EXPRESS EMPLOYMENT PROFESSIONA 10/25/2017 5,107.52
194797 29 FASTENAL COMPANY 10/25/2017 140.07
194798 5191 BETHANY FERGUSON 10/25/2017 72.00
194799 5308 MEGAN FILANDA 10/25/2017 122.00
194800 133 FIVE STAR OFFICE SUPPLY 10/25/2017 305.99
194801 4644 ANDRAE FREEMAN 10/25/2017 300.00
194802 1636 FUN EXPRESS LLC 10/25/2017 338.34
194803 5247 NIKYA GIVENS 10/25/2017 108.00
194804 40 HARRISON TIRE & SUPPLY 10/25/2017 10.00
194805 181 HIX AIR CONDITIONING SERVICE 10/25/2017 313.00
194806 42 HOGLE COMPANY 10/25/2017 427.26
194807 289 HOLLOWAY UPDIKE AND BELLEN INC 10/25/2017 0.00
194808 1414 HOMELAND STORES INC 10/25/2017 62.07
194809 47 THE J & E CORPORATION 10/25/2017 144.95
194810 186 JAMES HODGE FORD-LINCOLN-MERC 10/25/2017 389.54
194811 4347 JURKIEWICZ, DAVID GERARD 10/25/2017 36.00
194812 4742 KAREN LAUDERDALE 10/25/2017 72.00
194813 117 LAVEDA BERTON 10/25/2017 17.33
194814 399 LOCKE SUPPLY CO 10/25/2017 252.12
194815 56 LOWES 10/25/2017 1,743.95
194816 4246 MARVIN'S MOWERS AND OUTDOOR LL 10/25/2017 4,863.30
194817 194 MORGAN SERVICES COMPANY LLC 10/25/2017 25.00
194818 341 MUSKOGEE LOCK & KEY 10/25/2017 224.24
194819 5082 MUSKOGEE MANUFACTURING LLC 10/25/2017 120.00
194820 197 MUSKOGEE YOUTH SERVICES 10/25/2017 2,462.72
194821 3652 NEWTON EQUIPMENT LLC 10/25/2017 420.13
194822 864 NORTHERN SAFETY CO 10/25/2017 454.49
194823 114 OFFICE DEPOT 10/25/2017 410.49
194824 2108 OKLAHOMA CHILLER CORPORATION 10/25/2017 4,384.18

10



CITY OF MUSKOGEE CLAIMS
10-12.17 TO 10-31-17

CHECK VENDOR VENDOR CHECK CHECK
NO NO NAME DATE AMOUNT
-------- ------- --------------------------------- ------------ -------------------

194825 415 OKLAHOMA CONTRACTOR'S SUPPLY 10/25/2017 1,826.00
194826 274 OKLAHOMA EMPLOYMENT SECURITY 10/25/2017 7,992.77
194827 2763 ONE SOURCE WATER LLC 10/25/2017 345.00
194828 70 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 10/25/2017 2,211.51
194829 73 PATE INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC 10/25/2017 163.06
194830 464 PETE'S MACHINE SHOP & ENGINE P 10/25/2017 10.00
194831 204 PIONEER ABSTRACT & TITLE COMPA 10/25/2017 21,835.00
194832 1621 PLANNING DESIGN GROUP 10/25/2017 3,150.00
194833 4795 PREMIER TRUCK GROUP 10/25/2017 878.26
194834 5008 PREMIER USA INC. 10/25/2017 1,013.08
194835 1865 RICHEY'S MUFFLER, BRAKES & MOR 10/25/2017 164.99
194836 3420 RIVERSIDE AUTOPLEX OF MUSKOGEE 10/25/2017 827.76
194837 3024 ROGER RUFFNER 10/25/2017 32.80
194838 149 ROSSON WHEEL SERVICE 10/25/2017 100.00
194839 2433 SIGNAL TEK, INC 10/25/2017 1,125.00
194840 3739 SLAPE, INETTE 10/25/2017 54.00
194841 4165 SPRING CREEK NURSERY INC 10/25/2017 2,250.00
194842 93 SUPERIOR LINEN SERVICE INC 10/25/2017 45.04
194843 2673 TASER INTERNATIONAL 10/25/2017 52,080.00
194844 94 TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING SERVICES 10/25/2017 2,327.01
194845 3102 TIGER NATURAL GAS INC 10/25/2017 749.88
194846 768 TOTAL TRUCK & TRAILER 10/25/2017 263.44
194847 97 UNIFIRST HOLDINGS LP 10/25/2017 79.08
194848 2398 UNIQUE DRY CLEANERS 10/25/2017 299.85
194849 5311 PATTI WAIT 10/25/2017 600.00
194850 335 WARREN CAT 10/25/2017 1,191.30
194851 215 WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OKLAHOMA I 10/25/2017 14,465.30
194852 717 WAYMAN, CINDY 10/25/2017 144.00
194853 99 WHEELER METALS 10/25/2017 105.50
194854 4901 LAURA WICKIZER 10/25/2017 36.00
194855 217 WINDOW DESIGNS AND INTERIOR DE 10/25/2017 1,974.60
194856 4882 CIVIC CENTER OPERATING ACCOUNT 10/26/2017 33,385.00
194857 99 WHEELER METALS 10/27/2017 4,000.00
194858 4468 BLUECROSS/BLUE SHIELD OF OK 10/31/2017 79,892.77
194859 289 HOLLOWAY UPDIKE AND BELLEN INC 10/31/2017 1,300.00

11



   
Regular City Council 2.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For:  Gary Garvin, Planning  Initiator: Susan Ross, Office

Adm 1
Department: Planning
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of Resolution No. 2708 declaring one (1) parcel of property as surplus property, more
particularly described in the resolution, as surplus to the needs of the City and authorize the conveyance
of said property, or take other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

BACKGROUND:
Parcel 1- The City received one (1) bid from Jeffery Hicks in the amount of $363.00 for the parcel
located at 809 S. Main.  Mr. Hicks owns two (2) abutting lots and plans to maintain all three (3) lots.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the resolution declaring one (1) parcel of property as surplus to the needs of the City and
authorize the conveyance of said properties. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
RES 2708 11-13-2017 Surplus Property 
Map 809 S. Main Street 



RESOLUTION NO. 2708

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY PRESENTLY IN THE POSSESSION 
OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE TO BE SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO DISPOSE OF SAID REAL PROPERTY, SAID TRACT 
OF LAND DESCRIBED AS:

E112.5 LOT 3 BLOCK 70, MUSKOGEE OT,

CITY OF MUSKOGEE, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma has in its possession certain real property which 
are no longer needed; and

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee desires to dispose of said real property, which are no longer 
needed, as surplus property according to the provisions of the Charter and the Ordinances of said City;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA;

SECTION 1: That property described as:

E112.5 LOT 3 BLOCK 70, MUSKOGEE OT,

City of Muskogee, Muskogee County, State of Oklahoma, is hereby declared to be surplus to the needs of 
the City of Muskogee, Oklahoma, and the City Manager is authorized to dispose of said real property.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, 
OKLAHOMA, THIS ______ DAY OF ______________, 2017.

__________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

_______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK
Seal

Approved as to form and legality this _____ day of ____________, 2017.

________________________________________
ROY TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY



AutoCAD SHX Text
227

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
152

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
149

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
150.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
98%%D48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
90%%D12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
98%%D48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
46.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
192

AutoCAD SHX Text
167

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
190

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH  2nd  STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH  MAIN  STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM=564.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
FL=556.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
TM=572.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW26-15-18-36

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW26-15-18-36

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. SOUTHSIDE BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"



   
Regular City Council 3.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For: Mike Miller, City Manager  Initiator: Marsha Wiseman,

Admin Assistant
Department: City Manager
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Appproval to accept a Muskogee Medical Center Foundation grant in the amount of $26,600.00 to be
used to fund the Medical Director position for our EMR/First Responder/Fire Departments, or take other
necessary action. (Mike Miller)

BACKGROUND:
Cities are required by state law to obtain the services of a Medical Director (M.D. or D.O.) to serve the
Emergency Medical Response (EMR)/First Responders/Fire Department.

This monies from this grant will fund this Medical Director position at $2,000.00 per month, plus a
one-time expense of $2,600.00 to cover the physician’s increased malpractice insurance.   This grant
was awarded for a recurring grant period of three (3) years.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Accept the Muskogee Medical Center Foundation grant in the amount of $26,600.00 to be used to fund
the position of Medical Director for our EMR/First Responder/Fire Departments.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 4.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For: Mike Miller, City Manager  Initiator: Matthew Beese,

Deputy City Attorney
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Attorney, City Manager 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval to authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a transition agreement from Spectra as
a third-party contractor to the City of Muskogee for operations of the Civic Center, or take other
necessary action. (Mike Miller)

BACKGROUND:
Spectra assumed operations of the Muskogee Civic Center in 2015.  The city has evaluated their
performance to date and have held discussions on ways to terminate the agreement with the least
possible acrimony.  Spectra has been a willing participant in those discussions and the City may be able
to negotiate a mutually acceptable agreement to end the contractual relationship.  After a transition
period, city staff would assume operations of the Civic Center and use remaining budgeted funds, to the
extent they are available, to operate through the fiscal year.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the city manager to negotiate and execute a transition from Spectra as a third-party contractor
to the City of Muskogee for operations of the Civic Center.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
The City would owe a prorated portion of the $150,000 loan that Spectra made to the City at the start
of the contract, as well as outstanding balances owed to Spectra. This may cause the city to go over the
budget for the civic center this year.  If so, we would need to amend the budget later in the fiscal
year, as we did in FY2016 and FY2017 for Spectra.
 

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 5.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For:  Rex Eskridge, Police  Initiator: Chad Farmer, Deputy

Chief
Department: Police
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval to apply for the 2018 State of Oklahoma Emergency Management Performance Grant
(EMPG) in the amount of $25,000.00 to be used to fund Emergency Management operations, or take
other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

BACKGROUND:
This is a reoccurring annual grant that the City receives. The EMPG grant is a 50% local 50% state
performance based grant. Based on the City's budget allocation to the Emergency Management
Department, the grant application will be for $25,000. The monies from this grant will be used in
furtherance of the Emergency Management operations for the City. This includes All Hazard, Whole
Community Planning, current Emergency Operations Plan, Hazard Mitigation Plan, and NIMS
compliance. The EMPG program encourages the development of a comprehensive emergency
preparedness system for all hazards by the State and local governments. See attached FY 2018
Emergency Management Program Grant Application.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval to apply for the 2018 Oklahoma Emergency Management Performance Grant (EMPG) in the
amount of $25,000.00.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
2018 EMPG Application 





















































   
Regular City Council 6.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For:  Rex Eskridge, Police  Initiator: Chad Farmer, Deputy

Chief
Department: Police
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval to purchase eleven (11) digiTicket electronic ticket books from Saltus Technologies for
$35,144.00, or take other necessary action. (Rex Eskridge)

BACKGROUND:
The Police Department has had six (6) digiTicket electronic ticket books for many years.  These new
devices would integrate into the program we already have established with Saltus Technologies.  This
purchase would include trading in our current hardware that is outdated and purchase five (5) additional
units for a total of eleven (11) units.  These would be swapped out between shifts during daily shift
changes and not assigned to a specific officer as part of their equipment.  The use of the electronic ticket
books saves the officer time during the traffic stop which in turn increases the officer's safety.  In
addition the hand written tickets have to be manually entered into the system by a member of the City
Court Clerk's Office.  The electronic tickets are imported and saves a significant amount of manpower
for the Court Clerk.  Another added benefit is the electronic tickets are more legible than the hand
written citations.
The funding for these new devices would come from the Capital Outlay account that was created for a
Taser in-car camera project.  After researching the in-car camera system it was significantly more than
originally anticipated so the Police Department is requesting moving this money to this new project. 
See attached proposal from digiTicket.
City IT Director Chris Cummings has been consulted with and is supportive of this new equipment.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the purchase of eleven (11) digiTicket electronic ticket books from Saltus Technologies for
$35,144.00.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
Capital Outlay Account 213-5050-421.64.50 $37,500.00

Attachments
digiTicket quote 



Submitted in Confidence for the Muskogee Police Department 
Please confirm pricing 60 days from date above 

 
  

 
 

Budgetary New Hardware Quote for: 
 

Muskogee Police Department 
Sergeant Ty Pickering 

 
  
 

October 12, 2017 
 

               
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Proposal Prepared by: 

Paige Berra 
Account Manager  

PaigeB@SaltusTech.com 
918.392.3914 office 

918.625.9066 mobile 
 

Saltus Technologies 
907 South Detroit, Suite 820 

Tulsa, OK 74120 
 



 
 

Confidential | Muskogee Police Department Page 2 
Copyright © 2017 Saltus Technologies, LLC All Rights Reserved 

October 12, 2017 
Sergeant Ty Pickering 
Muskogee Police Department 
 
RE: digiTICKET New Hardware Pricing Quote 
 
Per your request, I have provided the following hardware quote for your review.  This pricing includes 
the following: 
 
• Purchase of 5 additional mobile client licenses (Increase from 6 to 11) 
• Purchase of 11 new Zebra MC67 handhelds and necessary peripherals to replace your aging CN50 

fleet. 
o Zebra is offering a $100 trade in rebate for each CN50 you trade in for an MC67. We will 

register you for the rebate and they will send you a rebate check directly. 
• Purchase of 11 new Brother RJ4030 printers and necessary peripherals to replace your aging 

Datamax O’Neil fleet. 
o Brother is offering a $50 trade in credit for each of your 6 O’Neil printers. 

• Purchase of 11 new Taylor Made work boards/holsters. 
• On-site new hardware training for your officers.  
• Since you are upgrading to new hardware we will need to complete a software upgrade, free of 

charge. This ensures that you are running an up to date version of digiTICKET. Once you decide to 
move forward with purchasing new hardware you will be placed into the active upgrade queue.  We 
typically have 4 to 5 customers in the queue at any given time.   
 

We’re glad the City is happy with digiTICKET and we look forward to serving you in the future. Please let 
me know if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Paige Berra 
Account Manager 
918.392.3914 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Confidential | Muskogee Police Department Page 3 
Copyright © 2017 Saltus Technologies, LLC All Rights Reserved 

digiTICKET Price Quotes  

digiTICKET Hardware Refresh & Software Refresh Price Quote

Fees Units  Total 
New Software License Fees 5  $          650  $                3,250 

Re-Training * 1  $          300  $                   300 
New hardware configuration & testing 11  $            50  Waived 

Hardware (handhelds,printers, warranties, etc) ** 11  $       2,932  $              32,254 
Paper Cost (50 roll minimum w/ pre-printed back) 20  $            12  $                   240 

Datamax O'Neil Printer Trade in Credit 6  $           (50)  $                  (300)
 $              35,744 

CN50 Handheld Rebate 6  $         (100)  $                  (600)
 $              35,144 

    

Component Units  Fee Totals
Annual Maintenance and Support Fee 22%  $              715.00 

 $              715.00 

Total Purchase Price Before Rebate (Year 1):

Total Annual Recurring Fees

Recurring Annual Fees 

* Includes travel and living expenses for two onsite trainers.
** See detailed hardware quote with line item descriptions on following pages.

Total Purchase Price After Rebate (Year 1):

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 
 

Confidential | Muskogee Police Department Page 4 
Copyright © 2017 Saltus Technologies, LLC All Rights Reserved 

digiTICKET Hardware Pricing  

Replacement handheld units only require the cost of the units themselves. A software upgrade would be 
required but it would be at no cost.  

DETAILED HARDWARE QUOTE

Item Name Qty Total

Rugged Mobile Computers

Motorola MC67 Rugged Handheld Computer (Windows 6.5)
MC67, GPS, 4G WWAN HSPA+, WLAN 802.11 A/B/G/N, 2D IMAGER, CAMERA, WM 6.5, 1GB/8GB, 
QWERTY KEY, BLUETOOTH, EXTENDED 1.5X 3600 MAH BATTER

11 18,582.08$            

ONECARE ESSENTIAL SERVICE, INCLUDES COMPREHENSIVE COVERAGE FOR 3 YEARS 11 2,741.64$              

U.S. AC LINE CORD, 3 WIRE/PRONG, 1.8M, GROUNDED 0 -$                        

VEHICLE CHARGER, 12 VOLT, CIGARETTE LIGHTER ADAPTER 11 933.02$                 

Handheld Computer Docking Stations

MC67 Docking Stations

MC65/67 4-SLOT ETHERNET CRADLE KIT, INCLUDES CRADLE (CRD5500-4000ER), POWER SUPPLY 
(PWRS-14000-241R), DC LINE CORD (50-16002-029R), REQUIRES U.S. LINE CORD 23844-00-00R

3 1,518.21$              

MOTOROLA, US AC LINE CORD, 3 WIRE/PRONG, 1.8M, GROUNDED, NEMA 5-15P 3 21.21$                   

Thermal Ticket Printers 0 -$                        

Brother RuggedJet 4030 Bluetooth Thermal Printer

RuggedJet 4030 w/ Bluetooth Kit - includes printer, LION battery, belt clip 11 6,290.24$              

RuggedJet 4 - 3 year warranty; 1-Year Premium Service (initial service plus 1 additional year) 11 505.23$                 

Vehicle Power Adapter (cigarette lighter) 11 191.18$                 

Carrying Case

Taylor Made work board carrying cases for MC67/RJ4030 11 1,436.27$              

32,219.08$            

35.00$                   

32,254.08$           

84.82$                    

-$                        

7.07$                      

1,689.28$               

249.24$                  

506.07$                  

7.07$                      

Unit Price

TOTAL:

SUB TOTAL:

SHIPPING/HANDLING:

130.57$                  

571.84$                  

17.38$                    

45.93$                    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

Confidential | Muskogee Police Department Page 5 
Copyright © 2017 Saltus Technologies, LLC All Rights Reserved 

Recommended Hardware  

Saltus has designed digiTICKET to be “device agnostic” – meaning that we purchase “off the shelf” 
hardware and load the software on the devices. digiTICKET can be configured to utilize any number of 
computers and printers.  Typically, digiTICKET is deployed on a Windows Mobile handheld computer or a 
Windows XP/7/8 laptop or tablet with the proper data capture capabilities (barcode/magnetic stripe 
scanner, Bluetooth communication, touchscreen, etc.). Tickets can be printed on any type of mobile 
printer – thermal or otherwise.   

Motorola MC67 Rugged Handheld Computer 

• 4G WWAN & WLAN capability 
• Rugged computer designed for outdoor use and exposure to the 

elements 
• Rugged device rated for 8 foot drops  to concrete with an IP65 

ingress rating 
• Barcode Scanner (1D/2D) 
• 8MP Color Camera w/flash 
• Cradle, Wi-Fi, Bluetooth data communications 
• Touch screen suitable for capturing signatures 
• Stand-alone GPS functionality 
• Indoor and vehicle charging with extended battery life (1-2 days 

when placed in standby mode) 
• Physical QWERTY keyboard and on-screen keyboard 
• Capable of capturing voice notes 
• Optional magnetic stripe reader attachment 

 
Brother RuggedJet 4030 
• Fast print speed of up to 5 inches per second 
• Tough Construction - IP54 certification and 6 ft. drop protection 

mean that water, dust, or drops won't affect the printer's 
operation under normal conditions 

• Versatile Functionality - Prints on labels and receipts from 2 
inches wide to 4 inches wide 

• Two year, "bumper-to-bumper" warranty * – Brother will fix the 
problem or provide a replacement printer 

• Ergonomic design – Easy to load media and intuitive interface 
controls 

• Low maintenance costs – Highly reliable direct thermal 
technology uses fewer moving parts than other printing 
technologies  

• Low consumable costs – There are no ink or ribbons to replace  
• Wide range of connectivity options – USB, Serial, and Bluetooth®  
• 203 dpi resolution 
• Support for 1D and 2D barcodes 
 

 



 
 

Confidential | Muskogee Police Department Page 6 
Copyright © 2017 Saltus Technologies, LLC All Rights Reserved 

Taylor Made Custom Work Boards/Holsters  

• Custom made for Saltus to hold the MC67 handheld computer and 
Bluetooth thermal printers 

• Work boards enable officers to easily store and transport ticket writers 
and printers – includes multiple mounting options  

• Taylor Made provides custom work boards and holsters made from 
durable ballistic materials and stainless steel clips and D-rings.   

• These cases can be custom designed to meet specific vehicle 
requirements. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 



   
Regular City Council 7.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For:  Rex Eskridge, Police  Initiator: Gayle Johnson, Chief

Secretary
Department: Police
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval to receive donated funds for the month of September 2017, in the amount of $727.00 for the
City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Program as per the attached list, or take other necessary action. (Rex
Eskridge)

BACKGROUND:
City Council approved a Resolution authorizing a Sponsorship Program for the City's Animal Shelter
with said funds to be used for the purpose of neutering and spaying shelter animals.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve receiving donated funds for the month of September, 2017 in the amount of $727.00 for the
City's Animal Shelter Sponsorship Agenda Item Title. 

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
September 



pg. 1

Animal Shelter Donations for 2017

September

Shirley Taylor $ 50.00

Jessie Jackson 5.00

Elizabeth Keith 10.00

Jeff Conine 25.00

Mallory Testa 65.00

Janet Ross 30.00

Laura Birchfiel 20.00

Andrea Chancellor 100.00

Robert Cunnis 10.00

Stacy Redfern 65.00

Cody Ketcher 8.00

Donation Bucket 53.00

Kevin Reed 10.00

Charles Carey 20.00

Robert Ferguson 10.00

Tim Bruckner 5.00

Nellie Rose 14.00

Jacambria Twilley 23.00

Marlene Gard 20.00

Jarrod Sawyer 14.00

Tammy Runabout 10.00

Leslie Logan 8.00

Ray Hopkins 17.00

Betsy Warren 40.00

Patty Comer 65.00

Wayne Will iams 10.00

Betsy Warren 20.00

Total: $ 727.00



   
Regular City Council 8.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For:  Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Roy Tucker, City

Attorney
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval to direct Staff to bring forth a revised ordinance modifying City Code 22-674 and 22-675
removing permitting procedures for hospital and ambulatory care, or take other necessary action. 
(Marlon Coleman)

BACKGROUND:
At the September 19, 2017 committee meeting, Staff was directed to research how other cities license
hospitals and ambulatory care centers to determine how our current provisions relate to other
communities in Oklahoma. Staff will be prepared to present findings in accordance with the request and
receive additional direction.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Discuss and provide direction to staff.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 9.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Initiator: Christy Byrd, Office Administrator I
Department: Public Works
Staff Information Source: Greg Riley, Director of Public Works; Jim Wixom, Assistant Director of

Public Works-Operations 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Approval of lowest and best bid from Rehrig Pacific Company in the amount of $552.50 per tank for
purchase of 81 two (2) cubic yard containers-rear loading for Fiscal year 2017-2018, or take other
necessary action. (Greg Riley)

BACKGROUND:
The 2017 budget includes $45,000.00 for purchase of two (2) cubic yard containers for our rear loading
commercial routes.  One (1) bid and two (2) no-bids were received, and Rehrig Pacific Company was
the lowest bid.  This is the company that we have used in the past for this type of container.  There were
bids per each and the bid amount allows us to purchase 81 containers within the budget.  This bid is
approximately 1% more per container than last year's low bid price.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approval of lowest and best bid from Rehrig Pacific Company in the amount of $522.90 per tank for
purchase of 81, two (2) cubic yard containers-rear loading, for Fiscal year 2017-2018.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
212-6050-432-64-50-Solid Waste Collection Fund . Budgeted $45,000.00.

Attachments
Tab sheet 





   
Regular City Council 10.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Initiator: Susan Ross, Office Adm 1

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Ordinance No. 4031-A rezoning the property
located at 4421 Denison Street, more particularly described in the ordinance, from "R-1" Single-Family
Residential District, to "C-1" Local Commercial District, and if approved, authorize Staff to revise the
Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said change, or take other necessary action. (Gary D. Garvin)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
LOTS 7 AND 8 IN BLOCK 19 IN CANARD ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE,
LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE1/4) OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH,
RANGE 18 EAST, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant, Cassandra Logan, is requesting the property located at 4421 Denison Street be rezoned
from "R-1" Single-Family Residential District to "C-1" Local Commercial District to allow a Day Care
Center (8 or more persons) to be located on the property.

According to the Land Use Map, the area is classified as single-family residential.  The request to
rezone to "C-1" Local Commercial District would not comply with the Comprehensive Plan and Land
Use Map adopted by the City of Muskogee.  Additionally, allowing a commercial zoning within a
residential area would be considered spot zoning.

Notices have been sent to the property owners within 300 foot radius, as required, and published in the
paper twenty (20) days prior to the Public Hearing.  A Public Hearing will be held on the following days:

November 6, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.: City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission
November 7, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.: Public Works Committee
November 13, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. Muskogee City Council Meeting
 

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Deny the Ordinance rezoning the property from "R-1" Single-Family Residential District to "C-1" Local
Commercial District.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
4031-A Ord 11-17-2017 Amending Zoning Map Cosandra Logan 
Site Plan/Notice - Logan 



ORDINANCE NO. _4031-A______

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE 
CITY OF MUSKOGEE AS PROVIDED BY CHAPTER 90, SECTION 01-03,
OF THE MUSKOGEE CITY CODE, SEPTEMBER 2014, BY RE-ZONING
LOTS 7 AND 8 IN BLOCK 19 IN CANARD ADDITION TO THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE1/4) OF 
SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST, MUSKOGEE 
COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL 
PLAT  THEROF, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, CONTAINING 
13,200 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR LESS, AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY. (CASANDRA LOGAN, Applicant)

FROM “R-1” SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

TO

“C-1” LOCAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee Planning and Zoning Commission, in a 
meeting held November 6, 2017, did recommend the approval of the rezoning of the 
property  set out above in the title of the Ordinance, and did authorize the director of the 
Commission to advise the Council of the City of Muskogee of this recommendation,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA,

Section 1. THAT, the official zoning map of the City of Muskogee as provided by 
Chapter 90, Section 01-03, of the Muskogee City Code, September 2014, is hereby 
amended by changing the District Classification by rezoning; LOTS 7 AND 8 IN 
BLOCK 19 IN CANARD ADDITION TO THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, LOCATED IN 
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE1/4) OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, 
RANGE 18 EAST, MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA FROM “R-1” 
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO “C-1” LOCAL COMMERCIAL
DISTRICT.

AND that this change be so ordered and declared by the City Council.

Section 2. THAT, the City Clerk is authorized and directed to show 
such change on the zoning map record.

Section 3: REPEALER.   All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
direct conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of the conflict only.



Ordinance No.__________

Section 4: SEVERABILITY.  Should any part, section, subsection, 
sentence, provision, clause, or phrase hereof be held invalid, void, or unconstitutional for 
any reason, such holding shall not render invalid, void, or unconstitutional any other 
section, subsection, sentence, provision, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance, and the same 
are deemed severable for this purpose.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA, THIS 13TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2017.

__ _____
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK
(SEAL)

APPROVED as to form and legality this  day of , 2017.

___________________________________________
ROY D. TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY



Public Hearing Notice

DENISON

N
O

RT
H

45
T

H
ST

R
E

ET

44
T

H
ST

R
E

ET

19

161514131211109

8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

AVENUEOKLAHOMA

TRACT 1

TRACT 2

AVENUE

N
O

RT
H

Proposal: To rezone property located at 4421 Denison Street, from “R-1” Single Family 
Residential District to “C-1” Local Commercial District. The property is
more particularly described as:

Lots 7 and 8 in Block 19 in Canard Addition to the City of Muskogee, located 
in the Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section 14, Township 15 North, Range 18 
East, according to the official plat therof, Muskogee Couty, Oklahoma.
Containing 13,200 square feet, more or less. 

Applicant: Casandra Logan

This notice is provided to property owners within 300 feet of the above site to inform them of the 
following public hearings regarding the above proposal:

November 6, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.: City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission
November 7, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.: City of Muskogee Public Works Committee
November 13, 2017 at 7:00 p.m.: City Council

All of the public hearings will be held in the Council Chambers, 3rd Floor of the City Municipal 
Building, 3rd Street and Okmulgee, Muskogee, Oklahoma. The purpose of the public hearing is 
to discuss the above proposal.  You are welcome to attend the meeting and express your opinion.  
If you have questions about the proposal, or need additional information prior to the public 
hearing, please contact the Planning Department at 918.684-6232.



DENISON

N
O

RT
H

45
T

H
ST

R
E

ET

44
T

H
ST

R
E

ET

19

161514131211109

8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

AVENUEOKLAHOMA

TRACT 1

TRACT 2

AVENUE

N
O

RT
H

(Casandra Logan, Applicant)

PUBLIC NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that on November 6, 2017, at 9:00 a.m., in the Council Chambers of 
the Municipal Building, Muskogee, Oklahoma, a public hearing will be conducted by the 
City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission, on Novmeber 7, 2017, at 4:00 p.m., by 
the Public Works Committee, and on Novmeber 13, 2017, at 7:00 p.m., by the City Council 
to consider an application to rezone property located at 4421 Denison Street, from “R-1” 
Single Family Residential District to “C-1” Local Commercial District. The property is
more particularly described as:

Lots 7 and 8 in Block 19 in Canard Addition to the City of Muskogee, located in the 
Southeast Quarter (SE1/4) of Section 14, Township 15 North, Range 18 East, 
according to the official plat therof, Muskogee Couty, Oklahoma. Containing 13,200 
square feet, more or less.

And for taking any other actions as authorized by law, of which all interested persons will 
take notice.

Mark Luttrull, Chairman
City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission



   
Regular City Council 11.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Initiator: Susan Ross, Office Adm 1

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Hold a Public Hearing and take action on the approval of Ordinance No. 4032-A rezoning the property
located at 318 S. Cherokee Street, more particularly described in the ordinance, from "R-1"
Single-Family Residential District to "I-1" Light Industrial District, and if approved, authorize Staff to
revise the Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said change, or take other necessary action. (Gary
D. Garvin)  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
THE NORTH 61.4 FEET OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 367 MOT TO THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE,
ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT THEREOF, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST,  MUSKOGEE
COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant, City of Muskogee (Public Works), is requesting the property located at 318 S. Cherokee
Street to be rezoned from "R-1" Single-Family Residential District to "I-1" Light Industrial District to
allow a new Public Works (Maintenance Headquarters) building to be located on the property.

According to the Land Use Map, the Cherokee Street corridor (running parallel to the railroad) is
classified as Light Industrial. The request to rezone to "I-1" Light Industrial complies with the
Comprehensive Plan and Land Use Map adopted by the City of Muskogee.

Notices have been sent to the property owners within 300 foot radius, as required, and published in the
paper twenty (20) days prior to the Public Hearing. A Public Hearing will be held on the following days:

November 6, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.: City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission
November 7, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.: Public Works Committee
November 13, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. Muskogee City Council Meeting
 

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Approve the Ordinance rezoning the property from "R-1" Single-Family Residential District to "I-1"
Light Industrial District, and authorize staff to revise the Official Zoning Map of the City to reflect said
change.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
4032-A 11-13-2017 Rezoning 318 S. Cherokee St. 
Site Plan/Notice - COM 





ORDINANCE NO. ___4032-A________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE 
CITY OF MUSKOGEE AS PROVIDED BY CHAPTER 90, SECTION 01-03,
OF THE MUSKOGEE CITY CODE, SEPTEMBER 2014, BY RE-ZONING
THE NORTH 61.4 FEET OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 367 MOT TO THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE, ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT THEREOF, 
LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW1/4) OF SECTION 26, 
TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST,  MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE 
OF OKLAHOMA; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY. (City of 
Muskogee, Applicant)

FROM “R-1” SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

TO

“I-1” LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the City of Muskogee Planning and Zoning Commission, in a 
meeting held November 6, 2017, did recommend the approval of the rezoning of the 
property  set out above in the title of the Ordinance, and did authorize the director of the 
Commission to advise the Council of the City of Muskogee of this recommendation,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA,

Section 1. THAT, the official zoning map of the City of Muskogee as provided by 
Chapter 90, Section 01-03, of the Muskogee City Code, September 2014, is hereby 
amended by changing the District Classification by rezoning THE NORTH 61.4 FEET 
OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 367 MOT TO THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE, ACCORDING TO 
THE OFFICIAL PLAT THEREOF, LOCATED IN THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 
(SW1/4) OF SECTION 26, TOWNSHIP 15 NORTH, RANGE 18 EAST; MUSKOGEE 
COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA; FROM “R-1” SINGLE FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO “I-1” LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT.

AND that this change be so ordered and declared by the City Council.

Section 2. THAT, the City Clerk is authorized and directed to show 
such change on the zoning map record.

Section 3: REPEALER.   All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
direct conflict herewith are repealed to the extent of the conflict only.



Ordinance No.__________

Section 4: SEVERABILITY.  Should any part, section, subsection, 
sentence, provision, clause, or phrase hereof be held invalid, void, or unconstitutional for 
any reason, such holding shall not render invalid, void, or unconstitutional any other 
section, subsection, sentence, provision, clause, or phrase of this Ordinance, and the same 
are deemed severable for this purpose.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA, THIS 13TH DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2017.

__ _____
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK
(SEAL)

APPROVED as to form and legality this  day of , 2017.

___________________________________________
ROY D. TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY



Public Hearing Notice

COLUMBUS   AVENUE

SO
U

TH
  C

H
E

RO
K

E
E 

 S
T

RE
ET

5

4

2

368

367

3

14

4

3
6

Proposal: To rezone property located at 318 S Cherokee, from “R-1” Single Family 
Residential District to “I-1”Light Industrial District. The property is more 
particularly described as:

The North 61.4 feet of Lot 4 in Block 367 ot the City of Muskogee, 
according to the official plat therof, Muskogee Couty, Oklahoma.

Applicant: City of Muskogee

This notice is provided to property owners within 300 feet of the above site to inform them of the 
following public hearings regarding the above proposal:

November 6, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.: City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission
November 7, 2017 at 4:00 p.m.: City of Muskogee Public Works Committee
November 13, 2017 at 7:00 p.m.: City Council

All of the public hearings will be held in the Council Chambers, 3rd Floor of the City Municipal 
Building, 3rd Street and Okmulgee, Muskogee, Oklahoma. The purpose of the public hearing is 
to discuss the above proposal.  You are welcome to attend the meeting and express your opinion.  
If you have questions about the proposal, or need additional information prior to the public 
hearing, please contact the Planning Department at 918.684-6232.



COLUMBUS   AVENUE

SO
U

TH
  C

H
E

RO
K

E
E 

 S
T

RE
ET

5

4

2

368

367

3

14

4

3
6

(City of Muskogee, Applicant)

PUBLIC NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that on November 6, 2017, at 9:00 a.m., in the Council Chambers of 
the Municipal Building, Muskogee, Oklahoma, a public hearing will be conducted by the 
City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission, on Novmeber 7, 2017, at 4:00 p.m., by 
the Public Works Committee, and on Novmeber 13, 2017, at 7:00 p.m., by the City Council 
to consider an application to rezone property located at 318 S. Cherokee, from “R-1” Single 
Family Residential District to “I-1” Light Industrial District. The property is more 
particularly described as:

The North 61.4 feet of Lot 4 in Block 367 ot the City of Muskogee, 
according to the official plat therof, Muskogee Couty, Oklahoma.

And for taking any other actions as authorized by law, of which all interested persons will 
take notice.

Mark Luttrull, Chairman
City of Muskogee Planning & Zoning Commission



   
Regular City Council 12.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Initiator: Susan Ross, Office Adm 1

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat of Janie's Addition, consisting of one (1) lot on 4.33
acres, located on the south side of Gibson Street, west of Civitan Park, or take other necessary action.
(Gary D. Garvin)  

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
A TRACT OF LAND SITUATED IN THE NW/4 NE/4 OF SECTION 30, T15N, R19E OF THE I.B.&
M., MUSKOGEE COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA: WITH THE BASIS OF BEARING OF THIS
DESCRIPTION BEING NAD83(93) OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE, NORTH ZONE AND
PREPARED ON 9/20/2017 BY TONY ROBINSON, LS #1686: SAID TRACT OF LAND BEING
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING
AT THE NW CORNER OF THE NW/4 NE/4 OF SECTION 30, THENCE N88°20'49"E ALONG THE
NORTH LINE OF SECTION 30 A DISTANCE OF 350.52 FEET; THENCE S5°00'51"W A
DISTANCE OF 310.97 FEET; THENCE S89°00'47"W A DISTANCE OF 134.16 FEET; THENCE
S0°39'19"E A DISTANCE OF 228.39 FEET; THENCE N89°00'47"E A DISTANCE OF 152.92 FEET
TO A POINT ON A CURVE; THENCE ON A CURVE RIGHT WITH A RADIUS OF 2778.60 FEET
AN ARC LENGTH OF 182.85 FEET AND A CHORD WHICH BEARS S1°22'14"W A DISTANCE
OF 182.82 FEET; THENCE S88°20'49"W A DISTANCE OF 319.46 FEET; THENCE N1°39'11"W A
DISTANCE OF 720.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. CONTAINING 4.66 ACRES,
MORE OR LESS.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant, Anthony Glen Cox, has indicated the property is being platted into one (1) lot on 4.33
acres to allow the property to be developed residentially.  The applicant is proposing to build a new
single-family dwelling on the property.  Subdivision Review Committee reviewed the Preliminary and
Final Plats, and recommended approval with conditions (all conditions have been complied with).
 

RECOMMENDED STAFF ACTION:
Approve the Preliminary and Final Plat of Janie's Addition.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
Final Plat - Janie's Addition 





   
Regular City Council 13.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For:  Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Roy Tucker, City

Attorney
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval of Ordinance No. 4030-A amending the City of Muskogee Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 2, Administration, Article II, Municipal Government Organization; by Amending Section 2-20,
Meetings of the Council, by providing for modified meeting times for the City Council and City
Council Committees; Providing for Repealer, Severability, and Setting an Effective date, or take other
necessary action. (Roy D. Tucker)

BACKGROUND:
At the City Council meeting on October 23, 2017, the City Council approved changing the times of the
City Council meeting and the dates and times of the Public Works and Finance Committees. Staff has
prepared an ordinance memorializing the change for consideration.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the Ordinance.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
4030-A Ord 11-13-2017 Amending Meetings 



ORDINANCE NO. 4030-A

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF MUSKOGEE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, ARTICLE II, MUNICIPAL 
GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATION; BY AMENDING SECTION 2-20, 
MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL, BY PROVIDING FOR MODIFIED MEETING 
TIMES FOR THE CITY COUNCIL AND CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES; 
PROVIDING FOR REPEALER, SEVERABILITY, AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MUSKOGEE, OKLAHOMA, AS FOLLOWS:

AN AMENDED ORDINANCE

Section 1. The City of Muskogee Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Administration, Article II, 
Section 2-20, Meetings of the council, is hereby amended to read as follows:

SEC. 2-20. MEETINGS OF THE COUNCIL.

(a) Regular meetings of the council shall be held in council chambers at city hall on 
the second and fourth Mondays of each month, beginning at 7:00 5:30 p.m. In the event a regular 
meeting falls on a holiday, the regular meeting shall be held the following day at 7:00 5:30 p.m.

(b) Regular meetings of council committees, such as the public works committee and 
the finance committee, shall be held in council chambers at city hall on the first and third 
Mondays of each month, beginning at 5:30 p.m., consecutively. In the event that a regular 
committee meeting falls on a holiday, the committee meetings shall be held the following day at 
5:30 p.m., consecutively.

(b) The public body may charge a fee of up to $36.00 per year to persons or entities 
filing a written request for notice of meetings, and may require such persons or entities to renew 
the request for notice annually.

(c) Special meetings of the city council may be called at any time by the mayor or by 
five council members.

(d) In all respects the Oklahoma Open Meetings Act, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, 
Sections 301 et seq., as it now exists or as may be amended from time to time by the Oklahoma 
Legislature shall be followed.

(e) Except as otherwise provided by ordinance or by rules adopted by the council, 
Robert's Rules of Order, most current edition, shall govern the proceedings of the council insofar 
as it is applicable.

Section 2.   REPEALER.  All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in direct conflict herewith 
are repealed to the extent of the conflict only. 

Section 3.   SEVERABILITY.  Should any part section, subsection, sentence, provision, clause 
or phrase hereof be held invalid, void, or unconstitutional for any reason, such holding shall not 
render invalid, void, or unconstitutional any other section, subsection, sentence, provision, 



CITY OF MUSKOGEE

________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

______________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK

(seal)

Approved as to form and legality this ________ day of _______________________, 2017.

___________________________________
ROY D. TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY



   
Regular City Council 14.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For:  Donnie Wimbley, Purchasing  Initiator: Karen Felts, Office

Administrator
Department: Purchasing
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Consider approval to surplus 2004 Gradall XL3100 Excavator and to authorize the City Manager to
dispose of the same, or take other necessary action. (Mike Miller)

BACKGROUND:
2004 Gradall XL3100 Excavator to be sold due to the purchase of a new Gradall.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve to surplus 2004 Gradall XL3100 Excavator and to authorize the City Manager to dispose of the
same.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 15.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Roy Tucker, City

Attorney
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source:

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Discuss and take action approve an amendment to the cooperative agreement with the Oklahoma Music
Hall of Fame & Museum, Inc. providing for a supplemental appropriation for fiscal year 2017-2018.
(Mike Miller) 

BACKGROUND:
In committee, the City Council determined that the proposed new Muskogee Arts and Cultural
Authority presented by staff at the 11/7/2017 Public Works committee required further discussion and
consideration prior to action. Staff was, therefore, directed to confer with the Executive Director of the
OMHOF to determine if the City could provide a supplemental appropriation which would ensure
continued operations until a more permanent solution could be found. The appropriations requested
would allow OMHOF to continue operations while pursuing the more permanent solution.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the proposed amended agreement.

Fiscal Impact

FUNDING SOURCE:
The additional funding would come from the recent distribution from MMCA, as discussed in council
committee last week.

Attachments
Amendment 



AMENDMENT TO THE COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
MUSKOGEE AND THE OKLAHOMA MUSIC HALL OF FAME & MUSEUM, INC. 

EXECUTED THE 21ST DAY OF JUNE, 2015. 

This Amendment to the cooperative agreement between the City of Muskogee (“City” or 
collectively, “the Parties”) and the Oklahoma Music Hall of Fame and Museum, Inc. (“OMHOF” 
or collectively, “the Parties”) made and entered into on this ____ day of November, 2017 
amends the original agreement between the parties executed on the 21st day of June, 2015 as 
follows: 

WHEREAS, the Parties find and affirm that a contract exists between them executed on 
June 21, 2015 for the purpose of promoting the cultural and tourism development of the greater 
Muskogee community by: 1) providing funding for the administration and operation of the 
OMHOF; 2) working toward the long term financial stability of the OMHOF; and 3) creating a 
cooperative partnership between the parties (“Original Contract”); 

WHEREAS, the Parties find that it is for the public purpose to supplement the City’s 
allocation for FY 2017-2018 toward the purposes established by the Original Contract. 

NOW THEREFORE, UPON MUTUAL CONSIDERATION, THE PARTIES 
AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

Section A. Unless amended herein all the terms, conditions, phases, sections of the Original 
Contract remain in full force and effect.

Section B. Section V, Budgeting of Funds, subsection (a) is hereby amended and replaced as 
follows:

“OMHOF shall, on April 1st, submit an annual budget for approval by the City. 
The budget will be submitted in three (3) categories – Cultural Development, 
Tourism Development and Administrative Costs. For Fiscal Year 2017/2018 only, 
the City Council of the City of Muskogee hereby approves an appropriation of 
Fifty-Two Thousand, Three Hundred Ninety-Six Dollars ($52,396).” 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]



CITY OF MUSKOGEE

________________________________
JOHN R. COBURN, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________
TAMMY L. TRACY, CITY CLERK
(seal)

Approved as to form and legality this ________ day of November, 2017.

___________________________________
ROY D. TUCKER, CITY ATTORNEY

OKLAHOMA MUSIC HALL OF FAME &
MUSEUM, INC. 

____________________________
President



   
Regular City Council 16. A.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Submitted For: Roy Tucker, City Attorney  Initiator: Leslie Arnold,

Attorney Secretary
Department: City Attorney
Staff Information Source: City Attorney 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Pursuant to Section 307B.4, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in executive session to
discuss the worker’s compensation claim of Chad Farmer, and if necessary, take appropriate action in
open session. (Roy D. Tucker)

BACKGROUND:
The City Attorney desires to discuss with the Mayor and Council the pending workers compensation claim of
Chad Farmer arising from an injury on 12/10/2014.
 
The City Attorney advises the City Council that the Council should determine that disclosure of confidential
communications between the Council and the City Attorney regarding the above referenced item will seriously
impair the ability of the City to defend the City's interest, and from that determination, the Council should
convene in executive session to discuss this matter.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Convene in executive session to discuss the worker’s compensation claim of Chad Farmer, and if necessary, take
appropriate action in open session.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council 16. B.           
Meeting Date: 11/13/2017  
Initiator: Gary Garvin, Planning Director
Department: Planning
Staff Information Source: Gary D. Garvin, Director of Planning & Economic Development 

Information
AGENDA ITEM TITLE:
Pursuant to Section 307 C.10, Title 25, Oklahoma Statutes, consider convening in
Executive Session for the purpose of conferring on matters pertaining to economic
development in the Northwest quadrant of the City as well as economic development
within the urban renewal area, and if necessary, take appropriate action in open session.
(Gary D. Garvin)

BACKGROUND:
The Director of Planning and Economic Development wishes to discuss with the City Council matters
pertaining  to economic development, where such matters, if publicly disclosed, would interfere with the
development of those products or services in Muskogee.  
  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Convene in Executive Session for purposes of conferring on matters pertaining to economic
development, and take action in open session.

Fiscal Impact

Attachments
No file(s) attached.


	Agenda
	___6870
	    10-17-2017 spccmin
	    10-23-2017 ccmin
	_ 1.  _C.01.__6886
	    Claims 10.12.17 to 10.31.17
	_ 2.  _C.02._Approve Parcel of Property as Surplus Property
	    RES 2708 11-13-2017 Surplus Property
	    Map 809 S. Main Street
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	_ 3.  _C.03._Grant Acceptance from Muskogee Medical Center Foundation
	_ 4.  _C.04._Civic Center Management Contract
	_ 5.  _C.05._2018 EMPG Application
	    2018 EMPG Application
	_ 6.  _C.06._DigiTicket Purchase
	    digiTicket quote
	Budgetary New Hardware Quote for:
	Muskogee Police Department
	Sergeant Ty Pickering
	October 12, 2017
	Proposal Prepared by:
	Paige Berra
	Account Manager
	PaigeB@SaltusTech.com
	918.392.3914 office
	918.625.9066 mobile
	Saltus Technologies
	907 South Detroit, Suite 820
	Tulsa, OK 74120
	October 12, 2017
	Sergeant Ty Pickering
	Muskogee Police Department
	RE: digiTICKET New Hardware Pricing Quote
	Paige Berra
	Account Manager
	918.392.3914
	digiTICKET Price Quotes
	digiTICKET Hardware Pricing

	_ 7.  _C.07._Donations for Animal Shelter
	    September
	Consent_ 8.  _C.08._Hospital Ordinance 
	_ 9.  _C.09._Approval of lowest and best bid from Rehrig Pacific Company in the amount of $552.50 per tank for purchase 81 two cubic yard containers.
	    Tab sheet
	_ 10.  _C.10._Logan Rezoning
	    4031-A Ord 11-17-2017 Amending Zoning Map Cosandra Logan
	    Site Plan_Notice - Logan
	_ 11.  _C.11._COM - Rezoning
	    4032-A 11-13-2017 Rezoning 318 S. Cherokee St.
	    Site Plan_Notice - COM
	_ 12.  _C.12._Preliminary & Final Plat - Janie's Addition
	    Final Plat - Janie's Addition
	_ 13.  _C.13._Ordinance on meeting time change
	    4030-A Ord 11-13-2017 Amending Meetings
	_ 14.  _C.14._2004 Gradall XL3100 Excavator
	Regular_ 15.  _C.15._OMHOF
	    Amendment
	Executive Session_ 16. A. _C.16.A._Workers Compensation
	Executive Session_ 16. B. _C.16.B._Economic Development

